
1

finasst
Highlight



Published on Town of West Newbury MA (https://www.wnewbury.org)

Home > Planning Board Public Hearing on Pentucket School Building Project Postposed to 12/17

Planning Board Public Hearing on Pentucket School 
Building Project Postposed to 12/17

The meeting of the West Newbury Planning Board scheduled for tonight, Tuesday, 
December 3, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. is cancelled due to the poor weather conditions.

The scheduled public hearing on the Pentucket Regional School Building Project is 
therefore postponed.  The rescheduled hearing date is Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 
7:00 p.m. in the Town Annex.

Source URL: https://www.wnewbury.org/planning-board/news/planning-board-public-hearing-pentucket-
school-building-project-postposed-1217 

2



TO: Angus Jennings, Town Manager and the Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Jeff Durand, Chief of Police 

DATE: December 2, 2019 

RE: Hiring of Reserve Officer Emmanuel Terrero 

Gentlemen, I would like to have Emmanuel Terrero appointed as a Reserve 

Officer. Emmanuel currently lives in Methuen MA with his wife. He has completed 

the MPTC reserve officer academy, and other related training. Emmanuel 

currently works for the Town of Boxford as a school safety officer at Masconomet 

Regional High School. He also works as an auxiliary police officer for the city of 

Haverhill MA. 

Emmanuel has passed his background check, as well as his psychological exam. He 

is also fluent in both English and Spanish. Emmanuel has a positive attitude and I 

believe he will be an asset for the Town. 

A

3



 A Massachusetts Accredited Agency 

WEST NEWBURY PUBLIC SAFETY DISPATCH
401 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985  

Phone 978-363-1213 

Fax 978-363-1114 

Jeff Durand, Police Chief 

durand@westnewburysafety.org

To: Town Manager Angus Jennings 

From:  Chief Jeff Durand 

Date: November 22, 2019 

Re:  Part time dispatcher appointment approval of Samantha Holt 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The department has been looking to hire more part time dispatchers to maintain a 

proper and adequate part time staff.  After an interview and a completed background 

check, the department would like to hire Samantha Holt as a part time dispatcher.   

Samantha attended Unity College in Maine where she graduated with a Bachelor’s of 

Science in Parks and Forest Resources.  She is currently enrolled in the Master’s program 

at Unity College and will graduate with a Master’s Degree in Sustainable Natural 

Resource Management.  Currently, Samantha works for the Massachusetts Department 

of Conservation and Recreation where she works as a seasonal assistant forester. 

Samantha is very well spoken and professional.  She has shown a dedication to public 

service by working with West Newbury Emergency Management by volunteering her 

time to assist with town events such as road races and the bicentennial celebration.  I 

feel that her personality and enthusiasm which she has shown, would be a great fit for 

this town and for the dispatch center. 

A complete background check was performed, which resulted in no issues being found. 

I recommend that Samantha Holt be hired as a part time dispatcher and I have no 

reservations at this time. 

Respectfully, 

Chief Jeff Durand 

B

4



TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

RECEIVED 

l�OV ·1 t.'. 20H1

TOWN MANAGER 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

The Town ,,ppreciates your interest 111 serving; Please complete thisform ,md return to: Board af 
Selectmen 381 Main Street, West Newbw;v, MA 0198S or e-mail to: sole I urv or 
Foradditioual information please call 978-363·1100, el\1, 115. 

Name: 

Address:
•-m•il, 

Mobile phone: Home phone: 

Board(s) or committee(s) you are interested in volunteering on: 

coA- (5Mrd 
I 

t/rpuJ,"1 --
Current or past committees served on: __ C_O_YJA_fU, __ �--=f

'=

=='u-�--��6_.cJM_- ==UA_=-·-

Relevant skills, expertise and education:--------=-----------� 

cCrr� L �rM v ,'lJre &-Ill 
I 

All board or committee vacancies will be filled by citizens deemed most qualified to serve in a particulor 
capacity. I also understand that in the event that l am appointed to a position, my activities will be governed by 
the Massachusetts Conflict oflnterest Law, Open Meeting Law, Public Records Law, the Bylaws of The Town 
of West Newbur nd�I other applicable federal, state and local laws or regulations. 

(/(A"- r_·. j,, __, 
Signature: ____ ,..__4.---. ___ ._.,..v_ '---____ r:>-vt' ____ r---__ · Date: _/,_�;........,..-_/._'...2-__ -_/_,J ___ � 

C

5



Published on Town of West Newbury MA (https://www.wnewbury.org)

Home > Volunteer Opportunity

Volunteer Opportunity

School Building Committee

The School Building Committee was formed in 2015 to work with the community to 
review, understand, and prioritize the needs of Pentucket High School teachers and 
students, and to make recommendations regarding the future of the existing building. The 
volunteer Committee includes representatives from West Newbury, Groveland, and 
Merrimac.  Members of community with architecture, engineering and/or construction 
experience are encouraged to apply.

If interested, please either drop off your Application for Appointment at the Office of 
the Town Manager or send it via email to the Town Manager.

Thank you!

Source URL: https://www.wnewbury.org/home/news/volunteer-opportunity-3 

D

6



1

Town Manager

From:
Sent: Monday, November 4, 2019 10:35 AM
To: Town Manager
Cc: Selectmen
Subject: School Building Committee Opening

Hi Angus, 

I saw in the newspapers that the building committee has an opening with Joe Torrisi moving from town.  I am 
willing to volunteer for the position, but will defer if a construction specialist steps forward with the construction 
qualifications being sought. 

These are the qualifications I would bring to the committee: 

Public Service 
- 5 years School Committee experience including 2 years Chair, 2 years Vice Chair, and 1 year Assistant

Treasurer
- 3 years Selectman experience including one year as Chair
- 6 years Conservation Commission experience that can provide insights regarding possible issues due

to wetlands at the site
- 6 years Assessor (in case additional funds need to be sought…  I hope that is not necessary).
- Was a School Committee representative to the building committee for the Page School and Bagnall

School projects from 2006 to May 2009 when I left the School Committee to become Selectman.

Professional and Educational Experience 
Finance 

- 19 years finance industry experience with direct experience managing up to $42 billion in assets,
including 5 years direct accounting-related experience.

- Chartered Financial Analyst
- Graduated with a MBA in Finance from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania.
- Graduated with a MS in Finance from the Carroll School of Management at Boston College.
- Graduated with a BS in Economics-Finance from Bentley College (now Bentley University).

Technology 
- 8 years of experience in technology where I currently lead the technical operations for a publicly traded,

security-focused company listed on NASDAQ.
- Currently completing a MS in Computer Science at the Whiting School of Engineering at The Johns

Hopkins University in Baltimore.
- Previous technology industry experience includes being Director leading the project management team

at Ingenico Group, a €6 billion market cap technology firm listed on the Paris Stock Exchange.
- Can provide feedback regarding implementation of hard-wired and wireless technology networks within

the building as it directly relates to my current role.  A construction specialist may not be able to provide
feedback on these types of specifics.

Long-Term Community Perspective 
My family and I are long-term residents of the Pentucket School District.  As a 1988 graduate of Pentucket 
High School with my daughters being third-generation Pentucket graduates, I would bring long-term views and 
perspectives to the committee. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

7



2

Best, 

Tom 

8



Town of West Newbury 
Application for appointment 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Town appreciates your interest in serving. Please complete this form and return to: Board of 
Selectmen, 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985 or e-mail to: selectmen@wnewbury.org  
For additional information please call 978-363-1100, ext. 115. 

 

 

e-mail: ___________________________________________________________________________

Mobile phone: ____________________________  Home phone: _____________________________ 

Board(s) or committee(s) you are interested in volunteering on:  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Current or past committees served on: ___________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Relevant skills, expertise and education: _________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

All board or committee vacancies will be filled by citizens deemed most qualified to serve in a particular 
capacity. I also understand that in the event that I am appointed to a position, my activities will be governed by 
the Massachusetts Conflict of Interest Law, Open Meeting Law, Public Records Law, the Bylaws of The Town 
of West Newbury and all other applicable federal, state and local laws or regulations. 

Signature: _____________________________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

9

mailto:selectmen@wnewbury.org


Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: December 7, 2019 

RE:  Draft Memorial Day Parade policy 

We received the enclosed written comments in response to the draft policy previously circulated. An 

updated draft will be prepared and re-posted to allow additional time for public review prior to 

presentation to the Board for consideration at its December 23rd meeting. The Board’s comments are 

invited so as to inform Town Counsel and my office’s work on the draft policy. 

G

10

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


11



12



13



14



15



16



17



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: December 7, 2019 

RE:  Animal Control Officer contract 

As you know, my office worked closely with the Board of Selectmen, the Police Chief and 

Newburyport personnel and Mayor leading up to the execution of an updated ACO contract 

concurrent with the FY20 budget process. Article 3 of the contract provides for extension for up to 

two additional years beyond its current initial year. It would be helpful to confirm early in the FY21 

budget season the Board’s interest in extending the contract and on what terms. 

J

18

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


19



20



21



22



23



24



25



1

Town Manager

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Good morning all – 

The Rural Policy Advisory Commission, created by the MA Legislature in 2015 and governed under M.G.L. Chapter 23A: 
Section 66, was charged with serving as a research body and producing a plan for issues critical to the welfare and 
vitality of rural communities across the Commonwealth.  The Rural Policy Plan was presented last month, and the link to 
the document may be found below.  It includes a report on the status of the 170 towns that meet the definition of 
“rural” (population density of less than 500 people per square mile), which in the MVPC realm includes Boxford, 
Newbury, Rowley and West Newbury. 

The goals of the Commission included advising the MA General Court and the Executive branch of the impact of existing 
and proposed state laws, policies and regulations on rural communities, advancing legislative and policy solutions that 
address rural needs, advocating to ensure that rural communities receive a fair share of state investment, promoting 
collaboration among rural communities to improve efficiency in delivery of services and develop and supporting new 
leadership in rural communities.  The goals of the Plan include identifying rural assets and challenges, describing how 
rural areas differ within the state, highlighting best practices underway across the state and beyond, and identifying a 
series of action‐oriented policy, investment and regulatory recommendations prioritized for implementation. 

As one of the 13 Regional Planning Agencies that contributed a percentage of our District Local Technical Assistance 
funding (thank you to the Legislative Delegation for always supporting and prioritizing DLTA for us!) to create the Plan, 
please know that we will continue to play a role in this ongoing discussion and implementation process.  We welcome 
your feedback. 

https://frcog.org/wp‐content/uploads/2019/10/RPP‐Final‐Draft‐10.10.19.pdf 

Best wishes and Happy Thanksgiving – 
Karen 

Karen Sawyer Conard 
Executive Director 

K

26



Town of West Newbury 
Board of Selectmen 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 @ 7p.m. 
381 Main Street, Town Office Building 
www.wnewbury.org
Minutes of Meeting 

Open Session: 7pm in the First Floor Hearing Room 

The Meeting was called to order at 7:13 p.m. by Chairman David Archibald. 

Announcements: 
• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the local cable

channels and on the internet.
• Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness - resident survey now online, please participate!
• A Capella Night! Northeastem's Nor'easters. Saturday, November 23 at 7 PM, Pentucket High School
• Opportunities for FY20 Committee appointments posted online at https://www.wnewbury.org/board-

selectmen/pages/2019-20-volunteer-opportunities

At the request of the Board of Selectmen,  Police Chief Jeffrey Durand read a statement regarding an alleged threat 
by a student at the Pentucket Regional High School.  Sgt. Johnson, School Resource Officer Dwyer and the School 
Administration concluded that there was no credible threat and that this was an unsubstantiated rumor.  He 
reported that the investigation continues and he has placed a few extra patrol officers around the school.  If anyone 
has any information regarding this incident they are requested to bring it forward to the West Newbury Police 
Department. 

Regular Business 
A. Acknowledgement and thanks for contribution of $4,155.79 to Carr Post Building Gift Account

The Board heard of previous fundraising efforts and expenditures related to the  
Carr Post Building.  At the end of this groups efforts the abovementioned amount was 
contributed to the Carr Post Building Gift Account. 

B. Request to require one facility use charge, 5-session beekeeping class at Town Hall -Black Birch Farm

William Hamilton answered Selectmen’s questions regarding this school.  Rather than the normal 
Rental Fee of $120.00 x 5 sessions for a total of $600.00 he is requesting a one time rental fee  
of $120.00 for all 5 sessions to make this class cost effective for him to run. 

Motion was made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper 
for a one time fee of $120.00 for a 5 session class. 

Yes 3, No 0. 

L

27

http://www.wnewbury.org/
http://www.wnewbury.org/board


 
 
 
 
 

C. Update on Water Rate Study now underway -Board of Water Commissioners 
 
 Michael Gootee, Manager/Superintendent of the Board of Water Commissioners answered  
 questions from the Board.  An outside consultant has been hired to study the rate structure 
 for the water rates for the next three years.  Related information regarding the rates is contained 
 in the Agenda Packets. Discussion took place regarding the current construction on the water  
 tank and future upgrades/maintainence projects.  Also discussed was the debt for these projects 
 and the effect on the rates. 
 

D. Review of draft policy regarding Memorial Day Parade 
 
  Town Counsel Michael McCarron prepared proposed Memorial Day Parade Rules which are  
  contained in the Agenda Packets.  This list of rules was for discussion purposes only and was  
  not intended to be voted on at this meeting.  This will be placed on the Towns website for  
  public comment and will be placed on a future agenda for adoption when completed. 
 
E. Discussion of November 4, 2019 Special Town Meeting and any follow-up items 

 
 Angus Jennings, Town Manager reported to the Board that he, Police Chief Jeffrey Durand,  
 and Wayne Amaral DPW Director have corresponded with MassDOT about the possibility  
 of on-street parking on Route 113 for the Soldiers and Sailors Building.  Related memorandum is  
 part of the Agenda Packet. 
 

F. Presentation ofFY20 Tax Recap Model and estimated tax rate 
 
 The Agenda Packets contain all related data for the Tax Recap Model and estimated tax rate prior  
 to the actual tax rate hearing for the Board’s information.  The Board requested information from 
 Angus Jennings, Town Manager regarding the changes in value in regard to other towns in the  
 Region.   
 

G. FY21 budget policy guidance and budget process 
 
 Angus Jennings, Town Manager supplied past policy and discussed the items of concern for the 
 upcoming budget season.  Discussion took place regarding the cost of solid waste hauling, solid  
 waste tipping fees, recycling and health insurance. The agenda packets contain past policy and  
 a memorandum from Angus listing items he wanted to bring to the attention of the Board. 
  

H. Update on Middle/High School design process, anticipated permitting timelines, neighborhood meeting 
 
 The Agenda Packets contain Minutes of Meeting and proposed VE design changes to be  
 voted on at the next School Building Committee meeting.  Angus brought his concerns about  
 the issues to be taken up at this meeting with the Board.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



 
 
 
 
 
 

I. Update on Designer Selection process for Soldiers & Sailors Memorial Building; designation of 
individual or group as Review Committee; review of insurance requirements, designer fee 
 
  The Agenda Packets contain a memorandum from Angus Jennings, Town Manager and  
  Michael McCarron Procurement Officer regarding progress on this project that is ongoing  
  for the Board’s review.   
 

Motion was made by Chairman David Archibald, seconded by Selectman Glenn 
Kemper to designate Michael McCarron to select the designer for this project. 
 
Yes 3, No 0. 
 
Discussion took place as to the charge of the Committee.  It was decided that this subject 
would be taken up at a future meeting. It was determined that a draft of the charge of the 
Building Committee should be placed on the next Board Meeting. 
 
Michael McCarron reported that the current timeline of the designer selection process 
would take place as follows: 
 
 December 9, 2019  Designers inspect the building 
 December 17, 2019  Selection Date 
 
Insurance coverage would be set at $1,000,000.00 for this project.  
 
Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper,  seconded by Selectman Richard 
Parker to amend the Board Policy on this project to 3 finalists or such lesser number 
of finalists based on the number of proposals received from qualified respondents. 
 
Yes 3, No 0. 
 

J. Review and approval of Conservation Restriction for River Road property 
 
 Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman  
 Richard Parker to Approve the Conservation Restriction for River Road  
 Property. 
 
 Yes 3, No 0. 
 

K. Review of draft Solid Waste Master Plan issued by MassDEP; preview of joint meeting with Board of 
Health on November 25, 2019 
 
 The Agenda Packets contain the draft material abovementioned.  Informational.  
  Discussion took place on this subject under Item G. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L. Rescind 9/16/19 temporary designation of Board of Selectmen representative to approve A/P warrants 
 
 Motion was made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to  
 rescind the Temporary designation of Board of Selectmen representative to approve 
 Accounts Payable Warrants. 
 
 Yes 3, No 0. 
 

M. Meeting minutes: November 4, 2019. 
 
 Item Tabled. 

 

Town Manager Updates 
N. Review of proposed borrowing structure for water capital projects (water tank, and wellfield chemical 

building) and Soldiers & Sailors Memorial 
 
 Informational.  Memorandum from Town Manger and proposed financing schedule are contained 
 in the agenda packets.   
 

0. Recap of items reviewed with MIIA during annual review of insurance coverage and policies 
 
 Informational.  Memorandum from Town Manager and related communications are contained  
 in the Agenda Packets. 

 
P. Update on request to MA EOHED to release $20,000 State funds for Page School ADA improvements 

 
 Informational.  Related communications for release of funds from State are contained in 
  the Agenda Packets. 
 

Q. Review of information prepared for Capital Improvement Committee meeting on November 13, 2019 
 
 Informational. Related memorandum from Town Manager, Minutes of Meeting and sample  
 are contained in the Agenda Packets. 
 

R. Housing policy discussion upcoming at CPC meeting on November 21, 2019 
 
 Memorandum from Town Manager contained in Agenda Packets. Michael McCarron,   
 Town Counsel advised that an item would need to be placed on the Spring Town  
 Meeting if the Board wishes to pay 3rd party costs if needed to use inclusionary housing fund.   
 Rules would need to be established for use of a housing fund and would need an appropriation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. Clarifications regarding FY20 holiday recognition schedule and departmental closures 
 
 Motion was made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper  
 that in recognition of Christmas Eve departments would close at 12:00 p.m.   
 This would be for non-essential, salaried employees. 
 
 Yes 3, No 0. 
 
 Motion was made by Selectman Richard Parker, seconded by Selectman Glenn Kemper  
 that in recognition of the day before Thanksgiving departments would close at 2:00 p.m. 
 This would be for non-essential, salaried employees. 
 
 Yes 3, No 0. 
 

T. Follow up meeting assignments 
 
 Working Draft contained in Agenda Packets. 
 

U. Placing items for future agendas 
 
Motion made by Selectman Glenn Kemper, seconded by Selectman Richard Parker to adjourn at 10:04 p.m. 
 
Yes 3, No 0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, Mary DiPinto 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



1

Town Manager

From: Town Manager
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:30 PM
To: David Archibald
Subject: RE: 11_25_2019 Agenda draft
Attachments: Bridge Street speed limit change sent to MDOT 11-7-19.pdf; Church Street speed limit change sent 

to MDOT 11-7-19.pdf

The Church Street and Bridge Street requests were sent to MDOT a couple of weeks ago following the BOS vote.  I could 
add these under TM updates if you want; Wayne is out this week but if I’m remembering correctly it’s typically at least a 
90 day turnaround for MDOT response. 

Re Chase Street, MDOT rejected the data that was provided.  (It was based on speeds recorded by a police officer, and 
that’s unreliable because the presence of a police officer affects speeds; also, when the officer makes a traffic stop 
he/she misses some amount of traffic during the stop, which undermines the data set).  Therefore Wayne needs to do a 
new speed study on Chase Street, at which time he’ll present recommendations to the Board, get Board approval, and 
re‐submit the request to MDOT. 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Town of West Newbury 
Town Office Building 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
(978) 363‐1100 x111
townmanager@wnewbury.org

From: David Archibald <darchibald@wnewbury.org>  
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2019 12:12 PM 
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Subject: Re: 11_25_2019 Agenda draft 

Angus : Final thought : do we have to do anything to get the speed limit changes discussed previously  enacted? 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Nov 21, 2019, at 11:36 AM, Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Updated draft agenda attached, revised per your comments. 

I left BoS policies with a question mark – if I can get that together before posting agenda I’d like to keep 
it on, just to get that crossed off the list, but if not I’ll pull it. 

Re middle/high school, two reasons to have on agenda: 

‐ Update on front fields discussion.  Tabled at November School Building Committee mtg but 
needs to be decided at 12/10 BC mtg.   

M

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: December 7, 2019 

RE:  Community Compact Financial Policies 

The Board has previously approved six of the financial policies included in the MassDOR report 

completed in June 2018. The following policies have been approved:

1) Capital Planning
2) Debt Management
3) Financial Reserves
4) Forecasting
5) Indirect Cost Allocation
6) Other Post Employment Benefits Liability

In light of the change in composition of the Board of Selectmen since the Board’s prior actions on 
these matters, I have enclosed the six adopted policies, as well as the table of contents from the 
initial MassDOR report with a list of the other recommended policies. 

I will be working with finance personnel, the Finance Committee and others as appropriate to bring 

forward additional financial policies for review and approval by the Board of Selectmen.  

N

49

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

CAPITAL PLANNING 
 
PURPOSE 
To effectively maintain the Town’s infrastructure and protect the value of its capital assets, this policy 
outlines guidance for planning, reviewing, and coordinating capital improvements. Adherence to this 
policy will help the Town meets its capital needs despite limited resources. 
 
APPLICABILITY 
This policy applies to all current and proposed capital projects in the Town except for those that come 
under the authority of the Community Preservation Committee. It establishes a framework for long-
term capital improvements, sets guidelines and expectations for all Town departments in planning 
for and requesting capital projects, and outlines consensus budgetary goals for the Board of 
Selectmen, Town Manager, and Finance Committee. It also applies to related job duties of the Town 
Accountant and Treasurer/Collector. 
 
POLICY 
The Town will maintain its physical assets by providing funding in the operating budget to protect its 
capital investments and minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. To provide and 
preserve the infrastructure needed for achieving the highest levels of public services and quality of 
life possible within available financial resources, the Town will maintain an annually updated, six-year 
plan for capital improvements. The Town will emphasize preventive maintenance as a cost-effective 
approach to capital reinvestment and replace exhausted goods as necessary.  
 
The Town Manager, in consultation with the Capital Improvement Committee (CIC), is charged to 
oversee West Newbury’s capital improvement program. The CIC’s membership includes one member 
from the Board of Selectmen appointed by the Board for a one-year term, one member from the 
Finance Committee appointed by the Committee for a one-year term, and five citizens appointed by 
the Selectmen to three-year rotating terms. The objectives are to identify and prioritize projects, 
analyze funding, and create a long-term financial plan achievable within the Town’s budget 
limitations.  
 
A. Definition of a Capital Improvement 
 
A capital improvement is a tangible asset or project estimated to cost over $20,000, to have or extend 
at least five years of useful life, or to require an authorized borrowing. These include:  
 
 Real property acquisitions, construction, and long-life capital equipment 
 Major improvements to physical infrastructure, including streets, sidewalks, stormwater 

drains, and water distribution systems 
 Major renovations of existing capital items that extend their useful lifespans, as distinguished 

from normal operating expenditures 
 Planning, feasibility studies, and designs for potential capital projects 
 Items obtained under a long-term capital lease 
 Bulk purchases of similar items, like software or furniture, with expected useful lifespans of 

five or more years that, when aggregated, have total costs exceeding the capital threshold 
  

50



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

B. Inventory 
 
To support a systematic acquisition and replacement schedule, the Town Accountant will annually 
update and maintain a detailed inventory of all capital assets, which shall include dates built, acquired 
or last improved, original costs, current conditions, expected and remaining useful lifespans, 
depreciated values, extent of use, and any scheduled replacement or expansion dates. 
 
C. Evaluation of Capital Projects 
 
Only projects that have gone through the  review process will be included in the CIP unless required 
by an emergency, in which case, a written report explaining the emergency must be provided to the 
Board of Selectmen. The Town Manager, with the CIC, will evaluate and prioritize the capital requests 
received from departments using the criteria below: 
 

1. Public health or safety 
2. State or federal laws or regulations 
3. Available outside financing sources, such as grants 
4. Preservation or replacement of an existing asset 
5. Productivity or service impact 
6. Adopted plans, goals, objectives, and policies of the Town 
7. Benefit to the Town's economic base 
8. Social, cultural, historic, economic, or aesthetic value 
9. Operational or personnel cost impact 
10. Community support 
 

D. Multiyear Capital Plan 
 
The Town Manager will annually develop a ten-year capital improvement plan (CIP) and provide it to 
the Board of Selectmen and Finance Committee by November 1. The CIP will include the upcoming 
fiscal year’s capital budget proposal and a five-year projection of capital needs and expenditures. The 
plan will incorporate assets from the Town Accountant’s capital inventory and provide estimated 
replacement dates and costs, descriptions, and anticipated funding sources, including all annual debt 
service requirements.  
 
Throughout the year, the Town Accountant will monitor active capital projects to ensure they remain 
properly funded and will report any capital plan amendments or issues to the Town Manager.  
 
E. Capital Financing 
 
To provide reserve monies for the CIP, the Town will establish and maintain a capital improvement 
stabilization fund. Doing this enables the Town to pay outright for moderate-range capital and other 
maintenance expenditures and thereby preserve debt capacity for major, higher-dollar purchases or 
projects. This approach balances debt with pay-as-you-go practices and protects against unforeseen 
costs. In accordance with the Town’s Financial Reserves policy, the target maintenance level for this 
reserve should be 15 percent of the Town’s annual operating budget.  
 
Annually, the Town will strive to maintain [three to five] percent of the general fund operating 
budget, net of debt, on capital investment allocations. Funding shall be derived from a combination 

51



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

of property taxes and the general and capital improvement stabilization funds. Long-term debt is an 
appropriate funding source for certain types of projects, while short-term debt and current revenues 
should be used for assets with short useful lifespans. 
 
The CIP shall be prepared and financed in accordance with the following principles: 
 
 Special revenue sources (e.g., grants, trust funds) shall be evaluated as funding options 

whenever practical.  
 The annual operating costs of each proposed capital project, as well its debt service costs, 

shall be identified before any long-term, bonded capital project is recommended.  
 Short-term debt may be used to fully finance purchases with useful lifespans of less than 10 

years. 
 Major capital projects, such as new construction or major renovations to existing facilities, 

may be accomplished through capital or debt exclusions. 
 Infrastructure or facility maintenance budgets built into the general operating budget will not 

be reduced to fund other departmental budgets. 
 To the fullest extent feasible, all capital projects associated with the Town’s water enterprise 

fund shall be financed from user fees. 
 
F. Capital Project Closeouts 
 
The Town will endeavor to close out all capital projects within six months of completion or 
discontinuation. When closing out any project with a residual balance, the Town Accountant will work 
with the Treasurer/Collector to do one of the following: 
 

 If the project was funded by available revenue (tax levy or reserves), reallocate the balance 
to another capital project(s) or close it to the appropriate fund surplus. 

 If the project was bond-funded and has a balance under $50,000, propose that the Board of 
Selectmen apply the balance to debt service. 

 If the project was bond-funded and has a balance over $50,000, propose that the Board of 
Selectmen apply the balance to another capital project(s) for which the Town may borrow for 
an equal or greater term than the originally issued loan. 

 
REFERENCES 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 20 M.G.L. c. 44, § 33B 
 
West Newbury bylaw Chapter IV, Capital Improvements Committee Bylaw 
West Newbury policies on Debt Management and Financial Reserves 
 
Division of Local Services (DLS) Best Practice: Presenting and Funding Major Capital Projects and 
Special Purpose Stabilization Funds 
DLS Financial Management Guidance: Capital Improvement Planning Manual and Capital 
Improvement Planning Guide – Developing a Comprehensive Community Program 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on December 3, 2018.  

52

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33B
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/09/presentingandfundingmajorcapitalprojects.pdf
http://www.mass.gov/dor/docs/dls/mdmstuf/technical-assistance/best-practices/specialstabilization.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/08/Capital%20Planning%20Manual%20Forms%20and%20Instructions_0.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/11/16/CapitalImprovementPlanningManual.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/11/16/CapitalImprovementPlanningManual.pdf


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

DEBT MANAGEMENT 
 
PURPOSE 
To provide for the appropriate issuance and responsible use of debt, this policy defines the 
parameters and provisions governing debt management. Policy adherence will help the Town to 
responsibly address capital needs, provide flexibility in current and future operating budgets, control 
borrowing, sustain capital investment capacity, and maintain or enhance the Town’s bond rating so 
as to achieve long-term interest savings.  
 
 
APPLICABILITY 
This policy applies to the budget decision-making duties of the Board of Selectmen, Town Manager, 
Finance Committee, and Water Commission. Further, it applies to the Treasurer/Collector’s debt 
management responsibilities and Town Accountant’s budget analysis and reporting duties.  
 
POLICY 
Under the requirements of federal and state laws, the Town may periodically issue debt obligations 
to finance the construction, reconstruction, or acquisition of infrastructure and other assets or to 
refinance existing debt. The Town will issue and manage debt obligations in such a manner as to 
obtain the best long-term financial advantage and will limit the amount of debt to minimize the 
impact on taxpayers. Debt obligations, which include general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, bond 
anticipation notes, lease/purchase agreements, and any other debt obligations permitted to be 
issued under Massachusetts law, will only be issued to construct, reconstruct, or purchase capital 
assets that cannot be acquired with current revenues.  
 
A. Debt Financing 
 
In financing with debt, the Town will: 
 

1. Issue long-term debt only for purposes that are authorized by state law and qualify for tax-
exempt bonds and only when the financing sources have been clearly identified.  

2. Use available funds as practicable to reduce the amount of borrowing on all debt-financed 
projects. 

3. Confine long-term borrowing to assets that cost at least $200,000 and that have at least 10 
years of useful life or whose useful lifespans will be prolonged by at least 10 years. 

4. Refrain from using debt to fund any recurring purpose, such as current operating and 
maintenance expenditures. 

5. Consider using revenue bonds, special assessment bonds, or other types of self-supporting 
bonds instead of general obligation bonds whenever possible. 

6. Set user fees to cover capital costs for the water enterprise operation to the extent 
practicable. 

 
B. Debt Limits 
 
The Town will adhere to these debt parameters: 
 

53



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

1. Total debt service, including debt exclusions and any self-supporting debt, shall be limited to 
10 percent of general fund revenues. 

2. As dictated by state statute, the Town's debt limit shall be five percent of its most recent 
equalized valuation. 

 
C. Structure and Term of Debt 
 
The following shall be the Town’s guidelines on debt terms and structure: 

1. The Town will attempt to maintain a long-term debt schedule such that at least [50] percent 
of outstanding principal will be paid within 10 years.  

2. The term of any debt shall not exceed the expected useful life of the capital asset being 
financed and in no case shall it exceed the maximum allowed by law. 

3. The Town will limit bond maturities to no more than [10] years, except for major buildings, 
water and water facility projects, land acquisitions, and other purposes in accordance with 
the useful life borrowing limit guidelines published by the Division of Local Services (DLS). 

4. Any vote to authorize borrowing will include authorization to reduce the amount of the 
borrowing by the amount of the net premium and accrued interest. 

5. The Town will work closely with its financial advisor to follow federal regulations and set time 
frames for spending borrowed funds to avoid committing arbitrage, paying rebates, fines and 
penalties to the federal government, and jeopardizing any debt issuance’s tax-exempt status. 

 
D. Bond Refunding 

 
To achieve potential debt service savings on long-term, tax-exempt debt through bond refunding the 
Town will: 
 

1. Issue debt with optional call dates no later than 10 years from issue. 
2. Analyze potential refunding opportunities on outstanding debt as interest rates change. 
3. Use any net premium and accrued interest to reduce the amount of the refunding. 
4. Work with the Town’s financial advisor to determine the optimal time and structure for bond 

refunding. 
 

E. Protection of Bond Rating 
 
To protect its bond rating, the Town will: 
 

1. Maintain good communications with bond rating agencies, bond counsel, banks, financial 
advisors, and others involved in debt issuance and management. 

2. Follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus, including data 
on total outstanding debt per capita, as a percentage of per capita personal income, and as a 
percentage of total assessed property value. 

 
F. Reporting 

 
1. The Town Accountant and Treasurer/Collector will report to the Board of Selectmen and 

Town Manager on the Town’s debt status  by September 30 each year. 

54



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

2. The Town Accountant will include an indebtedness summary as part of a report on receipts 
and expenditures in West Newbury’s Annual Town Report.  

3. The Town Accountant, with the Town’s financial advisor, will file the annual audit and official 
disclosure statement within 270 days (March 31) of the end of the fiscal year. 

 
REFERENCES 
M.G.L. c. 41, § 59  M.G.L. c. 41, § 61  M.G.L. c. 44, § 4  
M.G.L. c. 44, § 6  M.G.L. c. 44, § 6A  M.G.L. c. 44, § 7 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 8  M.G.L. c. 44, § 17  M.G.L. c. 44, § 19 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 20  M.G.L. c. 44, § 21A  26 USC § 148 
 
West Newbury Capital Planning policy 
 
DLS Best Practice: Understanding Municipal Debt 
 
DLS Borrowing Guidelines: Asset Useful Life - Borrowing Limits 
 
DLS Informational Guideline Releases 17-21: Borrowing and 17-22: Premiums and Surplus Proceeds 
for Proposition 2½ Excluded Debt 
 
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practice: Refunding Municipal Bonds 
 
Internal Revenue Service Guidance: Arbitrage Guidance for Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on December 3, 2018. 
  

55

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter41/Section59
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter41/Section61
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section4
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section6
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section6A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section7
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section8
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section17
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section19
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/26/148
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/11/16/understandingmunicipaldebt.pdf
http://mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/22/dlsassetusefullifeschedules-maximumborrowingterm.pdf
http://mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/22/dlsassetusefullifeschedules-maximumborrowingterm.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-21.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-22.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-22.pdf
http://www.gfoa.org/refunding-municipal-bonds
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/07/18/2016-16558/arbitrage-guidance-for-tax-exempt-bonds


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL RESERVES 
 
PURPOSE 
To help the Town stabilize finances and maintain operations during difficult economic periods, this 
policy establishes prudent practices for appropriating to and expending reserve funds. With well-
planned sustainability, West Newbury can use its reserves to finance emergencies and other 
unforeseen needs, to hold money for specific future purposes, or in limited instances, to serve as 
revenue sources for the annual budget. Reserve balances and policies can also positively impact the 
Town’s credit rating and consequently its long-term cost to fund major projects. 
 
APPLICABILITY 
This policy pertains to short- and long-range budget decision making duties of the Board of 
Selectmen, Town Manager, Finance Committee, and Water Commission. It also applies to the related 
job duties of the Town Accountant and Board of Assessors. 
 
POLICY 
The Town is committed to building and maintaining its reserves so as to have budgetary flexibility for 
unexpected events and significant disruptions in revenue-expenditure patterns and to provide a 
source of available funds for future capital expenditures. The Town will strive to maintain overall 
general fund reserves in the level of [10 to 15] percent of the annual operating budget. Adherence to 
this policy will help the Town withstand periods of decreased revenues and control spending during 
periods of increased revenues. There are multiple types of reserves, including free cash, stabilization 
funds, retained earnings, and overlay surplus.  
 
A. Free Cash 
 
The Division of Local Services (DLS) defines free cash as “the remaining, unrestricted funds from 
operations of the previous fiscal year, including unexpended free cash from the previous year.” DLS 
must certify free cash before the Town can appropriate it.  
 
To generate free cash, the Town Manager will propose budgets with conservative revenue 
projections, and department heads will carefully manage their appropriations to produce excess 
income and budget turn backs. As much as practicable, the Town will limit free cash appropriations 
to the spring annual and special town meetings for the purpose of funding one-time expenditures 
(such as capital projects, snow and ice deficits, or emergencies).  
 
The Town shall set a goal of maintaining its year-end unappropriated free cash balance in the range 
of five percent of the annual general fund budget. The Town will appropriate any excess above this 
target range to build reserves or offset unfunded liabilities. 
 
B. Stabilization Funds 
 
A stabilization fund is a reserve account allowed by state law to set aside monies to be available for 
future spending purposes, including emergencies or capital expenditures, although it may be 
appropriated for any lawful purpose. The Town has established five stabilizations as detailed below. 
All of them are accounted for and reported as trust funds, regardless of authorized use. 
 

56



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

General Stabilization: The Town will endeavor to maintain a minimum balance of five percent of the 
current general fund operating budget in its general stabilization fund. Withdrawals from general 
stabilization should only be used to mitigate emergencies or other unanticipated events that cannot 
be supported by current general fund appropriations. When possible, any withdrawal of funds should 
be limited to the amount available above the five percent minimum reserve target level. If any 
necessary withdrawal drives the balance below the minimum level, the withdrawal should be limited 
to one-third of the general stabilization fund balance. Further, the Town Manager and Town 
Accountant will develop a detailed plan to replenish the fund to the minimum level within the next 
two fiscal years. 
 
Special Purpose Stabilization Funds: The Town currently has [four] special purpose stabilization 
funds. Three are detailed below and the fourth in the next section, C. Retained Earnings. 
 

Capital Improvement Stabilization Fund: The Town will appropriate annually to this fund so 
that over time it achieves a target balance sufficient to cover the Town’s cash outlay for 
capital. The fund’s target balance should be 15 percent – or 100% funding of the CIP based 
on a rolling five-year average – of the Town’s annual operating budget.  
 
School Building Stabilization Fund: At a minimum, the Town will annually appropriate the 
amount of the current year’s retired debt to this fund until such time that the target balance 
is sufficient to cover capital cash outlays for the school building and mitigate future debt 
service.  
 
Retirement Stabilization Fund: The Town should annually appropriate or transfer from 
available funds a target of 10 percent of the annual Essex Regional Retirement System 
pension assessment to this fund to offset future pension liabilities.  

 
C. Retained Earnings 
 
The Water Department’s finances are managed under an enterprise fund, separately from the 
general fund, which allows the Town to effectively identify the utility’s true delivery costs—direct, 
indirect, and capital—and set user fees at a level sufficient to recover them. Under this accounting, 
the Town may reserve the water operation’s generated surplus (referred to as retained earnings) 
rather than closing the amount to the general fund at year-end.  
 
For the water enterprise fund, the Town will maintain a minimum reserve amount of [20] percent of 
the operation’s total budget to be used for rate stabilization. Retained earnings in excess of the [20] 
percent target will be reserved in the water stabilization fund to prepare for capital and major 
infrastructure improvements. To maintain the target reserve level for the enterprise fund requires 
the Water Commissioners to periodically review, and when necessary, adjust user rates.  
 
Note: If Town Meeting ever votes to change the purpose of the water stabilization fund or to revoke 
it, any fund balance acquired through water enterprise revenues must be retained in the enterprise 
fund. 
  

57



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

D. Overlay Surplus 
 
The overlay is a reserve the Town uses to offset uncollected property taxes and other unrealized 
revenue resulting from property tax abatements and exemptions.  
 
Prior to the conclusion of each fiscal year, the Board of Assessors will submit to the Town Manager 
and Town Accountant an update of the overlay reserve with data that includes, but is not limited to, 
the gross balance, potential abatement liabilities, and any transfers to surplus. If the balance exceeds 
the amount of potential liabilities, the Board of Selectmen may request the Board of Assessors vote 
to declare those balances surplus and available for use in the Town’s capital improvement plan or 
any other one-time expense.  
 
REFERENCES 
M.G.L. c. 40, § 5B 
M.G.L. c. 59, § 25 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 53F½ 
 
West Newbury Capital Planning policy 
 
DLS Best Practices: Free Cash and Special Purpose Stabilization Funds 
 
DLS Departmental Procedure Manual: Enterprise Funds 
 
DLS Informational Guideline Releases 17-20: Stabilization Funds and 17-23: Overlay and Overlay 
Surplus 
 
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices: Fund Balance Guidelines for the General 
Fund and Working Capital Targets for Enterprise Funds  
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on December 3, 2018. 
  

58

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter40/Section5B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIX/Chapter59/Section25
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1%7E2
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/09/freecash.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/09/specialstabilization.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/08/enterprisefundmanual.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-20.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-23.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-23.pdf
http://www.gfoa.org/appropriate-level-unrestricted-fund-balance-general-fund
http://www.gfoa.org/appropriate-level-unrestricted-fund-balance-general-fund
http://www.gfoa.org/working-capital-targets-enterprise-funds


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

FORECASTING 
 
PURPOSE 
To assess the range of choices available to budget decision makers when determining how to allocate 
resources, this policy establishes guidelines for evaluating revenue sources and the requirement to 
determine an expenditure strategy as part of the annual budget process and longer range fiscal 
planning. Forecasting helps local officials understand the long-range implications of pending near-
term decisions. 
 
APPLICABILITY 
This policy applies to the Board of Selectmen, Town Manager, and Finance Committee in their budget 
analysis and decision-making responsibilities. It also applies to the job duties of the Town Accountant 
and the managers of all revenue-generating departments, including the Water Department. 
 
POLICY 
 
A. Revenue Guidelines 
 
The Town will continuously seek to diversify its revenue to improve the equity and stability of sources. 
Each year and whenever appropriate, the Town will reexamine existing revenues and explore 
potential new sources. A balance will be sought between elastic and inelastic revenues to minimize 
any adverse effects caused by inflation or other economic changes. Additionally, intergovernmental 
revenues (e.g., local aid, grants) will be reviewed annually to determine their short- and long-term 
stability in order to minimize detrimental impacts. 
 
The Town will avoid using one-time revenues to fund ongoing or recurring operating expenditures. 
These one-time revenue sources can include, but are not limited to, free cash, overlay surplus, sale 
of municipal assets, legal settlements, insurance proceeds, and gifts. Additionally, the Town hereby 
establishes the following recommended order when appropriating one-time revenues: 
 
 Snow and ice deficit 
 Capital stabilization fund 
 School building stabilization fund 
 General stabilization fund 
 Pension liability stabilization fund 
 OPEB Trust Fund 
 Other 

 
Economic downturns or unanticipated fiscal stresses may compel reasonable exceptions to the use 
of one-time revenue. In such cases, the Town Manager, in consultation with the Town Accountant, 
can recommend to the Board of Selectmen its use for operational appropriations. Such use will trigger 
the Town Manager to develop an action plan with the Town Accountant to avoid continued reliance 
on one-time revenues. 
 
State laws impose further restrictions on how certain types of one-time revenues may be used. The 
Town will consult the following General Laws when the revenue source is: 
 

59



Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

 Sale of real estate: M.G.L. c. 44, § 63 and M.G.L. c. 44, § 63A 
 Gifts and grants: M.G.L. c. 44, § 53A and M.G.L. c. 44, § 53A½ 

 
This policy further entails the following expectations regarding revenues: 

 
 The Assessing Department will maintain property assessments for the purpose of taxation at 

full and fair cash value as prescribed by state law. 
 Town departments that charge fees will by October 31 each year review their fee schedules 

and propose adjustments when needed to ensure coverage of service costs. 
 The Building Inspector will notify the Town Manager of any moderate-to-large developments 

that could impact building permit volume. 
 Department heads will seek out all available grants and other aid and will carefully consider 

any related restrictive covenants or matching requirements (both dollar and level-of-effort) 
to determine the cost-benefit of pursuing them.  

 Revenue estimates will be adjusted throughout the budget cycle as more information 
becomes available. 

 By January 31, to the extent feasible, the Board of Water Commissioners will set water rates 
sufficient to cover all fiscal year operating and capital improvement costs so as to minimize 
any general fund subsidies. 
 

B. Expenditure Guidelines 
 

Annually, the Town will determine a particular budget approach for forecasting expenditures, either 
maintenance (level service), level funded, or one that adjusts expenditures by specified increase or 
decrease percentages (either across the board or by department). A maintenance budget projects 
the costs needed to maintain the current staffing level and mix of services into the future. A level-
funded budget appropriates the same amount of money to each municipal department as in the prior 
year and is tantamount to a budget cut because inflation in mandated costs and other fixed expenses 
still must be covered. 
 
C. Financial Forecast Guidelines 
 
To determine the Town's operating capacity for each forthcoming fiscal year, the Town Manager, 
with the Town Accountant’s assistance, will annually create a detailed budget forecast, including a 
three-year projection of revenues and expenditures for all operating funds. These forecasts will be 
used as planning tools in developing the following year’s operating budget and the six-year capital 
improvement plan. The Town Manager will provide the forecasts to the Finance Committee and 
Board of Selectmen for use in their budget decision making no later than the third week of January.  
 
To ensure the Town’s revenues are balanced and capable of supporting desired levels of services, 
forecasts for property taxes, local receipts, and state aid will be conservatively based on historical 
trend analyses and will use generally accepted forecasting techniques and appropriate data. To avoid 
potential revenue deficits, estimates for local receipts (e.g., inspection fees, investment income, 
license fees) should generally not exceed 95 percent of the prior year’s actual collections without firm 
evidence that higher revenues are achievable.  
 
Additionally, the Town’s forecast model should assume that:  
 

60

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section63
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section63A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53A1%7E2


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

 The Town’s current level of services will provide the projected baseline. 
 Property taxes (absent overrides) will strive to grow less than the limits allowed by 

Proposition 2½. 
 New growth will be projected conservatively, taking into account the Town’s three- to five-

year average by property class. 
 Local receipts and state aid will reflect economic cycles. 
 Historical trends in the growth of specific operating expenses and employee benefits will 

prevail. 
 Debt service on existing debt will be paid, and the Town’s Capital Planning and Debt 

Management policies will be followed. 
 Annual pension contributions and appropriations to amortize other postemployment benefit 

liabilities will continue. 
 Reserves will be built and maintained in compliance with the Town’s Financial Reserves 

policy. 
 The Water Department will reimburse the general fund for indirect costs. 

 
REFERENCES 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 20 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 53A 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 53A½ 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 63  
M.G.L. c. 44, § 63A 
 
West Newbury policies on Capital Planning, Debt Management, Financial Reserves, Grant 
Management, and Indirect Cost Allocation 
 
DLS Best Practice: Revenue and Expenditure Forecasting 
 
DLS Informational Guideline Release 17-21: Borrowing 
 
Government Finance Officers Association article: Structuring the Revenue Forecasting Process 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on December 3, 2018.  

61

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53A1%7E2
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section63
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section63A
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/09/forecastrevenuesandexpenditures.pdf
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/11/igr17-21.pdf
http://www.gfoa.org/structuring-revenue-forecasting-process


 

 

INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION 
 
PURPOSE 
To apportion all the indirect costs associated with the Town’s water enterprise fund in an equitable 
manner that reflects the operation’s true shared costs, this policy provides guidelines for calculating, 
allocating, and reviewing those costs. 
 
Under authority established in M.G.L. c. 44 § 53F½, the water service is managed and accounted for 
separately from the general fund and has its own financial statements. Consolidating the program’s 
direct and indirect costs, debt service, and capital expenditures into a segregated fund allows the 
Town to demonstrate to the public the true, total cost of providing the service.  
 
APPLICABILITY  
This policy applies to budgetary functions of the Finance Department/Town Accountant, the Water 
Department Superintendent and the Board of Water Commissioners. Further, it encompasses 
enterprise-related administrative functions of the Finance Department/Town Accountant, 
Treasurer/Collector, and Town Manager. 
 
POLICY  
As part of the annual budget process, the Town Accountant will calculate the Water Department’s 
indirect costs to the general fund and will review the figures with the Water Department 
Superintendent. The calculations will take into account all the enterprise-related expenses of the 
Town departments that provide administrative services to the water operation, namely:  
 

• Accounts payable, payroll, and general ledger services provided by the Town Accountant  

• Turnover processing, banking, investment, tax title, and payroll services provided by the 
Treasurer/Collector Department 

• Annual budget development and coordination services provided by the Town Manager 
 
For these expenses and those listed below, the Town Accountant will calculate indirect costs using 
the most recent fiscal year’s appropriations and based on the estimated support methodology, which 
is outlined as follows and takes into account:  
 

▪ Benefits for active and retired employees, including insurances, Medicare tax, 
unemployment, workers’ compensation 

▪ Pensions 
▪ Vehicle insurance 
▪ Property insurance 
▪ Independent audit services 
▪ Actuarial services 
▪ Legal services 
▪ Information technology expenses 
▪ Other costs that may be considered and agreed to and documented 

 

62

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2


 

 

The Town Accountant will maintain a written procedure detailing the costs and calculation 
methodologies used. Upon preparation of the calculated results for the subsequent fiscal year 
budget, the Finance Department will provide the calculated amount, with supporting methodology, 
to the Water Department Superintendent and the Board of Water Commissioners as early in the 
annual budgeting process as is feasible, based on when information becomes known regarding the 
indirect costs to be allocated. The Finance Department will make the Town Accountant, or other 
department representative, available to meet with the Water Superintendent and Water Commission 
if and as needed to review the calculated amount and methodology. 
 
If the Water Commission wishes to contest the amount or methodology of the calculated amount, it 
may do so in writing to the Town Manager. The Town Manager shall have the authority, based on 
his/her review of the methodology and based on conferral with the parties, to authorize the 
calculated amount, or another amount if found to be a more accurate estimate, which will appear in 
the Water Department expense budget to be proposed to Town Meeting. 
 
Upon approval of the Annual Town Budget, including a Water Department expense budget that 
incorporates the calculated amount, the Town Account will record transfers between the relevant 
funds by January 1 each year.  
 
Methodology for Calculating Indirect Costs 
 
The Finance Department will prepare a reasonable estimate of support (i.e., an estimate of the 
average time spent to support a particular service). For example, the Town Manager estimates he/she 
spends on average four hours weekly, or 10 percent of his/her time, on water-related activities (e.g., 
meetings, budgeting, clerical tasks). This percentage is applied against the department’s or official’s 
salary and benefits, including health and life insurance, Medicare, retirement and any workers’ 
compensation.  
 

Hours worked on enterprise activities 
per year by individual(s) 

X 

Salary and benefits of 
individual(s) working 

on enterprise 
activities 

= 
Indirect 

Departmental 
Salaries Total hours worked per year by 

individual(s) 
 

The sum total of all departments’ or officials’ expenses related to water operations will be included 
in the annual Water Department budget per the aforementioned process, then charged directly to 
the Water Department’s budget within the subsequent fiscal year.  

 
 
REFERENCES 
DLS Informational Guideline Release 08-101: Enterprise Funds 
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices: Indirect Cost Allocation and Full Cost 
Accounting for Government Services 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on August 5, 2019. 

63

http://www.mass.gov/dor/docs/dls/publ/igr/2008/igr08-101.pdf
http://www.gfoa.org/taking-advantage-indirect-cost-allocations
http://www.gfoa.org/measuring-full-cost-government-service
http://www.gfoa.org/measuring-full-cost-government-service


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY 
 
PURPOSE 
To ensure fiscal sustainability, this policy sets guidelines for a responsible plan to meet the Town’s 
obligation to provide other postemployment benefits for eligible current and future retirees. It is 
designed to achieve generational equity among those called upon to fund this liability and thereby 
avoid transferring costs into the future. 
 
APPLICABILITY 
This policy encompasses OPEB-related budget decisions, accounting, financial reporting, and 
investment. It applies to the Board of Selectmen and Finance Committee in their budget decision-
making duties, the OPEB-related job duties of the Treasurer/Collector and Town Accountant, and the 
investment duties of the Investment Policy Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In addition to salaries, the Town compensates employees in a variety of other forms. Many earn 
benefits over their years of service that they will not receive until after retirement. A pension is one 
such earned benefit. Another is a set of retirement insurance plans for health, dental, and life. These 
are collectively referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEBs. OPEBs represent a 
significant liability for the Town that must be properly measured, reported, and planned for 
financially.  
 
POLICY 
The Town is committed to funding the long-term cost of the benefits promised its employees. To do 
so, the Town will accumulate resources for future benefit payments in a disciplined, methodical 
manner during the active service life of employees. The Town will also periodically assess strategies 
to mitigate its OPEB liability. This involves evaluating the structure of offered benefits and their cost 
drivers while at the same time avoiding benefit reductions that would place undue burdens on 
employees or risk making the Town an uncompetitive employer.  
 
A. Accounting for and Reporting the OPEB Liability 
 
The Town Accountant will obtain actuarial analyses of the Town’s OPEB liability every two years and 
will annually report the Town’s OPEB obligations in financial statements that comply with the current 
guidelines of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Town Manager will ensure 
the Town’s independent audit firm reviews compliance with the accounting and reporting provisions 
of this policy as part of its annual audits and reports on these to the Board of Selectmen.  
 
B. Trust Management and Investment 
 
The Town has established an OPEB Trust Fund and designated the Treasurer/Collector to be its 
trustee. The Treasurer/Collector, in consultation with the Investment Policy Committee, will manage 
the OPEB Trust Fund in conformance with the Town’s OPEB Investment Policy included in this 
manual’s appendix and the state’s prudent investor laws.  
 
Annually by December 1, the Board of Selectmen, Treasuer/Collector, and Investment Committee 
will analyze their option to invest the OPEB trust with the State Retiree Benefits Trust Fund. 

64

http://www.mass.gov/srbtf/srbtf/


Town of West Newbury  Financial Policies 

 

 
 

 
C. Mitigation 
 
On an ongoing basis, the Town will assess healthcare cost containment measures and evaluate 
strategies to mitigate its OPEB liability. The Town Accountant will monitor proposed laws affecting 
OPEBs and Medicare and analyze their impacts. The Treasurer/Collector will regularly audit the group 
insurance and retiree rolls and terminate any participants found to be ineligible based on work hours, 
active Medicare status, or other factors.  
 
D. OPEB Funding Strategies 
 
To address the OPEB liability, decision makers will analyze a variety of funding strategies and 
subsequently implement them as appropriate with the intention of fully funding the obligation. The 
Town will derive funding for the OPEB Trust Fund from taxation, free cash, and any other legal form. 
To ensure that the Town’s water enterprise fund remains self-supporting, the Water Commissioners 
will factor its proportional OPEB contributions into the setting of user fees. 
 
Achieving full funding of the liability requires the Town to commit to funding its actuarially 
determined contribution (ADC) each year, which is calculated based on actuarial projections. Among 
strategies to consider for funding the ADC: 
 
 Transfer unexpended funds from insurance line items to the OPEB trust fund. 
 Appropriate amounts equal to the Town’s Medicare Part D reimbursements. 
 Determine and commit to appropriating an annual portion of free cash. 
 Appropriate an annually increasing percentage of yearly revenues. 

 
REFERENCES 
M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20  M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20A 
M.G.L. c. 44, § 54  M.G.L. c. 44, § 55 
M.G.L. c. 203C 
 
West Newbury policies for Investment and OPEB investment 
 
GASB Statements 75: Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions and 74: Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans 
 
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices: Ensuring Other Postemployment Benefits 
(OPEB) Sustainability and Sustainable Funding Practices for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other 
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
This policy was adopted on December 3, 2018. 
  

65

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIV/Chapter32B/Section20
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIV/Chapter32B/Section20A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section54
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section55
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleII/Chapter203C
http://gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FGASBDocumentPage&cid=1176166144750
http://gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FGASBDocumentPage&cid=1176166144750
http://gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FGASBDocumentPage&cid=1176166143121
http://www.gfoa.org/ensuring-other-postemployment-benefits-opeb-sustainability-0
http://www.gfoa.org/ensuring-other-postemployment-benefits-opeb-sustainability-0
http://www.gfoa.org/sustainable-funding-practices-defined-benefit-pensions-and-other-postemployment-benefits-opeb
http://www.gfoa.org/sustainable-funding-practices-defined-benefit-pensions-and-other-postemployment-benefits-opeb


 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

Antifraud..................................................................................................................................... 1 

Capital Planning .......................................................................................................................... 4 

Debt Management ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Disbursements .......................................................................................................................... 10 

Employee Reimbursement ........................................................................................................ 14 

Financial Reserves ..................................................................................................................... 18 

Forecasting ............................................................................................................................... 21 

Grant Management ................................................................................................................... 24 

Indirect Cost Allocation ............................................................................................................. 28 

Investments .............................................................................................................................. 30 

Other Postemployment Benefits Liability .................................................................................. 34 

Overlay ..................................................................................................................................... 36 

Procurement Conflict of Interest .............................................................................................. 38 

Reconciliations .......................................................................................................................... 41 

Revenue Turnover ..................................................................................................................... 45 

Tailings ...................................................................................................................................... 48 

Tax Enforcement ....................................................................................................................... 50 

Tax Recapitulation .................................................................................................................... 53 

Year-end Closing ....................................................................................................................... 57 

 

Appendix 

Policy Log .................................................................................................................................. 63 

Massachusetts Collectors & Treasurers Association Investment Policy Statement ................... 65 

Municipal Calendar ................................................................................................................... 73 

 

 
 

  

66



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 

townmanager@wnewbury.org 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE: December 7, 2019 

RE:  OPEB 

We received an initial report from the consultant actuary, conducted a conference call with key 

personnel to review its findings, and we expect to receive a final report on or before Tuesday, 

December 10th. The report will be circulated upon receipt.  

O

67

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org

	Bldg Comm Application Signed.pdf
	Town of West Newbury

	11 12 19 BOS Minutes of Meeting.pdf
	Town of West Newbury
	Board of Selectmen
	Tuesday, November 12, 2019 @ 7p.m.
	381 Main Street, Town Office Building
	www.wnewbury.org
	Minutes of Meeting
	Announcements:
	Regular Business
	Town Manager Updates



	Mobile phone: 
	Home phone: 
	Boards or committees you are interested in volunteering on: School Building Committee
	Current or past committees served on 1: West Newbury PTO (former Executive 
	Current or past committees served on 2: Board member, current Treasurer), We Are Pentucket co-chair
	Relevant skills expertise and education 1: I have been following the building
	Relevant skills expertise and education 2: project for over two years and have attended the majority of the 
	Relevant skills expertise and education 3: monthly meetings during that time. I am a Pentucket Alumna
	Relevant skills expertise and education 4: and my children are students at the Page school. I have a BSN.
	Date: 12/05/2019


